
 

 

West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

January 3, 2019 

 

Present: Win Johnson, Matt Kantola, Brett Myers, Mike Spackman, Martha Harrison 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – change Town Administrator from hourly to salaried 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

4) Sign MOU with Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) – Martha said RSVP, the 

organization that sponsors the Bone Builders program, periodically asks the town to sign a 

Memorandum of Understanding certifying that we don’t discriminate and that their 

volunteers will not displace paid employees. They also ask us to fill out and sign a Site 

Accessibility Assessment. Win said he thinks we should also ask them to sign a Facility Use 

Agreement. Brett moved to authorize Martha to sign the MOU and the Site Assessment, 

provided RSVP is willing to sign a Facility Use Agreement. Matt seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously.  

5) Budget discussions – Highway: Win said the highway department is roughly $13,000 over 

budget for 2018. Win noted the following changes to the 2019 budget since the last meeting: 

Gravel & culverts was lowered by $1,000; calcium chloride was lowered by $1,000; sand and 

gravel was increased by $500. Brett asked what winter maintenance operating materials are. 

Mike said that includes chains and blades. Win asked about the bridge maintenance budget. 

Mike said we need that to cover the deductible on our insurance. After discussion, Mike and 

the Selectboard agreed to keep the budget for repairs to the grader at $5,000. Fuel for the 

town garage was increased by $500. Win said he is proposing that the Selectboard drop the 

transfer to the Roadway Maintenance fund from $20,000 to $15,000, which will reduce the 

budgeted deficit to $15,000. Win said at the beginning of 2018, the highway department had 

a surplus from prior years of $105,000. This year’s $38,000 deficit is going to reduce that 

surplus to $67,000 and the deficit budgeted for 2019 is going to reduce the surplus to 

$52,000. Win said that’s okay but he wouldn’t want it to go much lower than that so we’re 

going to have to go back to a balanced budget next year. Regarding dental insurance, Martha 

said she got a confusing email from VLCT indicating that there was no extra cost to add 

spouses and children to the policy but when she inquired further she found that there is an 

additional cost but that it would be paid by the employee. Win said let’s just go with 

individual coverage and if the employees really want to pay for coverage for their families, 

we can add that later. Martha said either way it wouldn’t affect the budget because the town 

would only be paying for the individual employee. Regarding wages, Win said, 

approximately every seven years you have a year with 53 weeks of payroll and 2018 was one 

of those years. Win said the auditor will make an adjustment for that. Win said our new 

accounting system will provide a report on overtime, personal time, and vacation time. Mike 

said the highway department usually works between 150 and 250 hours of overtime, 

depending on the weather. Win noted that the amount to be raised by taxes for the highway 

fund is increasing by 2.09%.  General Fund: Win said the general fund is under budget for 

2018. Win noted changes that Cathy made to delinquent tax interest and penalties and 

accounting reimbursement. Regarding the reappraisal reserve, Win said Annie Burke was 

comfortable dropping that from $5,000 to $2,000. Win said we have over $130,000 in the 

Listers Fund and we don’t know when we’re going to be doing a reappraisal, which would 

cost around $110,000, but we don’t want the fund to drop down to $0. Win said our common 



 

 

level of appraisal (CLA) is good but, according to Annie, our coefficient of dispersion is a 

little high and sooner or later it’s going to trigger a reappraisal. Win said the $500 for general 

office machinery and equipment was removed from the 2019 budget. Win noted a $3,000 

decrease in workers’ compensation insurance, which is based on past experience, and the 

$44,018 debt service for the village sewer project, which will be the same for thirty years. 

Win said the debt for the fire truck and the fuel tank removal will go away after three more 

years. Win said Windsor on Air requested an appropriation of $750. Matt asked about the 

rationale for the increase. Win had no objection to asking Windsor on Air about the increase 

but wanted to leave it in the budget at $750. Brett agreed. Win noted that the amount to be 

raised by taxes for the General Fund is only increasing by 0.15% (less than $1,000). Matt 

asked about the proposed purchase of the Burke property. Win said the general fund has a 

surplus from prior years of $625,000, which is why we can budget a $50,000 deficit each 

year to keep taxes down. Win said we can also use the surplus to purchase the Burke property 

without affecting the tax rate. Matt said it makes sense to fund big projects with surplus 

funds, rather than bonding. Regarding the 2019 Library appropriation, Win said if the Library 

Trustees transfer the property to the town as expected, the $16,000 funding request would 

come out of the Appropriations budget and there would be a separate Library budget for the 

voters to approve, with an amount to be raised by taxes of $16,000. Win went over the draft 

2019 Library budget and noted that book sale income now goes to the Friends of the Library. 

Win said instead of voting for a $16,000 appropriation for the support and maintenance of the 

Library, the voters would be asked to approve the Library budget with $16,000 to be raised 

by taxes, so there’s no difference from a tax standpoint. Win said he likes the idea of having 

a separate budget for the Library. Brett and Matt agreed. Brett moved to approve the 2019 

General, Highway and Library budgets for presentation to the voters at Town Meeting. 

Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Win said he’s going to work on 

the Selectboard report and will send Brett and Matt a draft to review. Matt asked about the 

speed cart. Win noted that the Police Chief will be at the January 14th meeting so we can 

discuss that with him.  

6) Other Business – Town Administrator: Win said he has talked with Martha about changing 

her position from hourly to salaried and she’s okay with that. Win said having a salaried 

employee allows for some flexibility in work schedule provided the employee works an 

average of 40 hours a week and gets the job done. Win said Jill Muhr provided a sample time 

sheet that VLCT uses for their salaried employees. Brett moved to change the Town 

Administrator position from non-exempt to exempt. Matt seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  
7) Adjourn – Brett moved to adjourn at 7:41 PM. Matt seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


